
news in Rabun County 
100 years ago: 
In April 1913, the Tallulah 
Falls Dam was completed. 
The 11-foot wide and 14-foot 
high tunnel, through which 
water flowed from the dam to 
the penstocks at the power 
house, had been cut through 
solid rock. The result was de-
scribed as “… one of the most 
wonderful engineering feats in 
the development of the Falls.” 

Also in 1913, the National 
Forest Reservation Commis-
sion approved the purchase of 
30, 937 acres of forest land in 
Rabun County, at an average 
price of $7.05 per acre. These 
were among the first purchas-
es in the U.S. of the fledgling 
Forest Service 

Another event of historical 
significance in 1913 was the 
swearing in of Luther F. Rick-
man as Deputy Sheriff. Upon 
his entry into office, Mr. Rick-
man was characterized as    
“… a bright young man and it 
is hoped by his many friends 
that he will make a sober and 
upright officer.” In fact, Mr. 
Rickman went on to serve as 
Sheriff from 1917-1940. 

A final news item from 1913 
was the announcement that  
Clayton’s new railroad depot 
was nearing completion. The 
old depot was built in 1905, 
the same year the Tallulah 
Falls Railroad reached Clay-
ton. The 1913 depot was de-
molished when the railroad 
ceased operation in 1961. 

80 years ago: 
In April 1933, Forest Ranger 
Roscoe Nicholson announced 

the pending construction of a 
forest reforestation camp in 
the Warwoman Community. 
The camp, part of President 
Roosevelt’s emergency em-
ployment program (originally 
called Emergency Conserva-
tion Work and then the Civil-
ian Conservation Corps or 
CCC), was to employ 100 to 
125 men. Additional CCC 
camps in Rabun County even-
tually would include Camp 
Lake Rabun, Camp Gaften (at 
Moccasin Creek and Camp 
Tree (on Coleman River). 
Work assignments at the 
camps involved restoring land 
devastated by logging, plant-
ing trees, building roads, con-
structing fire towers (atop 
Rabun Bald and Glassy Moun-
tain), and creating recreational 
areas. Employment benefits 
included a salary of one dollar 
per day, food, clothes and 

medical attention.  
 

Having been in receivership 
since 1923, in 1933 initial 
approval was given to shut 
down the Tallulah Falls Rail-
road. Despite continued efforts 
to make the line a success, 
passenger service on the rail-
road finally ended in 1946 and 
the line was totally abandoned 
in 1961. 
 
For almost a quarter of a cen-
tury prior to 1933, Clayton 
had “… pointed with pride to 
the old school building on 

Picket Hill as it stood out in 
prominence on the little moun-
tain just back of town.” Never-
theless, in November 1933 the 
Board of Education voted to 
tear down the school, which 
had not been used since 1927, 
and use salvaged materials to 
construct a gym on the new 
Rabun County High School 
grounds on Savannah Street. 
In 1999, the gym was renovat-
ed and today serves as the 
Rabun County Civic Center.  
 
 
 

70 years ago: 
With World War Two under-
way and the demand for leath-
er increas- ing, pro-
duction of shoes for 
civilians slowed. 
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Beginning in February 1943, civilians 
were required to present stamp No. 19 
from their War Ration Book One (“the 
sugar book”) to buy a pair of shoes. 
 
Following public safety precautions as-
sociated with World War II, in April 
1943 a practice blackout was announced 
for Clayton. Everyone was “… urged to 
find out the air raid warden in their sec-
tion and give complete cooperation in the 
practice.” Citizens were especially en-
couraged to “… study the different 
alarms in order to be familiar with 
them.”  
 
In May 1943, Jessie Mae Justus became 
the first woman from Rabun County to 
join the Women’s Army Air Corps 
(WAAC), later working in military hos-
pitals in California and Texas. Following 
the war and her subsequent graduation 
from Western Michigan University, Ms. 
Justus worked at Oteen TB Sanitarium in 
East Asheville, North Carolina.  
 
During the summer of 1943, Mr. Hugh 
Bryan, Vocational Teacher and supervi-
sor of the local canning plant, was de-
scribed as “… just about the busiest man 
in town,” helping families to can apples, 
beans, corn, okra, soup mixtures and 
applesauce.” As of August, the plant had 
canned 31,232 No. 2 cans and had served 
279 families. Families were charged 
three and four cents for cans and a one 
cent processing fee. The WPA had con-
structed two canneries in Rabun County 
in 1935. 
 

60 years ago: 
In February 1953, Rabun Gap-
Nacoochee School observed its fiftieth 
anniversary. Both the Nacoochee Insti-
tute (established in 1903 near Sautee, 
Georgia) and Rabun Gap Industrial 
School (established in 1903 by Andrew 
J. and Addie C. Ritchie) had been de-
stroyed by fire in 1926. Fortunately, “out 
of the ashes came the merger” of the two 
schools whose shared purpose was to  
“… meet human needs in the lives of 
people living in the mountains of North 
Georgia and surrounding territory.” 
 
In April, 1953, the long talked about and 
planned road to the newly named Black 

Rock Mountain State Park was paved. 
Paving was to be completed within two 
months, making the drive “one of the 
most beautiful mountain panoramas in 
the entire nation.” The new park was 
officially dedicated on September 24, 

1953, featuring a barbecue and an ad-
dress by Governor Herman E. Talmadge. 
 

50 years ago: 
In March, 1963, the Mountain City Play-
house was nearing completion, the previ-
ous Playhouse having burned. As a popu-
lar entertainment spot for local citizens 
and summer visitors alike, many looked 
forward to hearing the buck dancing of 
feet and a voice calling, “Chicken in the 
bread tray, scratching out dough, granny 
will your dog bite; no child, no.” Over 
time this form of entertainment lost its 
appeal, and the Playhouse ceased opera-
tion in the early 1980s.  
 

40 years ago: 
In March 1973, the School Properties 
Committee of the Grand Jury recom-

mended that “… the present Rabun 
County High School building be evacuat-
ed and … construction of a new one be-
gun.” Citing several structural and 
maintenance problems, the committee 
noted that the high school was “… in a 
very rundown condition … past the point 
where repairs would be feasible.” Two 
years later, in 1975, the main part of the 
high school burned. The current high 
school at Tiger was occupied in  1977.  
 

30 years ago: 
On February 20, 1983, an early morning 
fire caused extensive damage to Sky Val-
ley Lodge. Fire departments from all 
over Rabun County, along with three 
from North Carolina, were needed to 
fight the fire. Estimated damage at the 
lodge was $500,000. Fortunately, only 
one minor injury was reported. 
 
Following the success of Foxfire Maga-
zine and a series of books, Foxfire Press 
was established in 1983 to publish books, 
calendars and related items. 

 

Grading the road to the top of Black Rock 

Mountain was done by men and mules, 

1930s. 

Fire department responds to fire at the Sky 

Valley Lodge, 1983. 

Mountain City Playhouse, 1950s 
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The most important event, because it 

influenced the other two, was the coming of 

the railroad.

• Amazingly, all three events 

happened during the first quarter 

of the twentieth century, from 

roughly 1900 to 1925. 


